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Highlights of history: foundation of the Netherlands Society for Clinical Chemistry
JJ Heeren, Breda
The development of the new discipline of clinical chemistry in the 2nd half of the 19th century was dominated by Germany. Still in the first decennia of the 20th century many Dutch physicians and medical specialists, after having finished their medical training in the Netherlands, went to Germany to the leading universities of Berlin, Marburg, Heidelberg and Tübingen to complete their education with a thesis. Back in the Netherlands they introduced and performed clinical chemical methods in their own practise. Eventually Dutch hospitals started to set up a laboratory in their institutes, usually supervised by one of the medical specialists, in an alliance with the hospital. 

As happened abroad, also in the Netherlands in the first decennia of the 20th century Dutch-written textbooks appeared. The textbooks of F.A. Steensma (1877-1957) and of E. Gorter (1881-1957) & W.C. de Graaff (1877-1944) – both had 7 editions in the period 1913-1956 – were used extensively.
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Fig 1 E. Gorter and WC de Graaff (right)
After World War II it became clear that a mere education in medicine would not be sufficient to cope with the new analytical methods that were developed during the war, mainly in the United States and which became available for the Dutch laboratories. These methods had a  dominant analytical chemistry character requiring special skills and education: flame photometry, electrophoresis and chromatography made their entrance.

It became clear that medical practice in general and the still rather rudimentary laboratories in the hospitals no longer could function adequately without the contribution of qualified chemists. As a result the boards of Dutch hospitals attracted such qualified personnel to head their clinical chemistry laboratories.
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May 17th, 1947 a meeting took place in Amsterdam of a number of scientists, active or at least interested in the discipline of clinical chemistry, in order to discuss a possible foundation of a society for clinical chemist and chemical oriented clinicians. Especially the names of dr EC Noyons, dr H. Neumann and dr Th. Strengers should be mentioned as initiative takers. September 20th, 1947 the official founding of the “Society for Clinical Chemists and Chemical Clinicians” took place.
Fig 2 dr E.C. Noyons

Later on it became clear that this Netherlands Society for Clinical Chemistry was the first society of that kind in the world. When dr Noyons wrote about the new society to dr D.D. van Slyke, at that moment  one of the most outstanding clinical chemists in the world, Van Slyke, wrote back: ‘I am very glad to learn that Holland is taking the lead in forming an association of Clinical Chemistry’. 

Chemists, pharmacists and physicians alike, they all showed their interest in joining the new society. Since its foundation in 1947 the Netherlands Society saw a prosperous development. The number of its members increased from about 20 in 1947 until about 660 now. 

 

In 1931 the Organisation for Medical Specialists in the Netherlands had established a registration system for their members. One of the officially registered medical specialisations 

was that of laboratory-physicians. The new Society for clinical chemistry realized that they needed  such an official registration system as well in order to protect their professional and corporational interests and in 1950 it came to the establishment of such a register of clinical chemists. For some time the Netherlands society even had two ‘classes’ of members: registered and non registered members. Each group had its own regulations and even its own executives. In 1970 the two groups were united again.

As early as 1954 the Netherlands Society was given the honour to organize the 1st European, later called the 1st International IFCC Congress on Clinical Chemistry in Amsterdam.
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Fig 3 dr J. Hattinga Verschure addressing the audience at the 1th IFCC congres in 1954
 

In 1987 again the Society was host for the (XIIIth) International IFCC Congress, this time held in The Hague.           

The Netherlands Society for Clinical Chemistry (abbreviated NVKC in Dutch) stands in the middle of the development of clinical chemistry and wants to contribute to national and international health care. The NVKC counts a lot of committees and sub-committees eg on the field of automation, on tumor markers, molecular biological diagnostics, quality, accreditation, foreign affairs, on quality, to mention a few. Next to this NVKC members take part in many international committees. Special grades can be achieved in endocrinology, haematology and metabolic inborn diseases.
The society has also a committee for candidate clinical chemists, KCiO, also with its own board and administration.

 

After 60 years the Dutch Society for Clinical Chemistry is still as alive as in the forties when the society was founded by a small group of very motivated and enthusiastic chemists and pharmacists, under the spell of that still fascinating discipline, clinical chemistry.   
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